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AV(PANE  CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

I am pleased to report a year of satisfactory progress on all frants.

Customer numbers continued to grow during 2018, and in turn we benefit from excelient renewal
rates that endorse the ethos of the Company, where we always seek to treat our custemers as we
would hope to be treated ourselves.

We measure every aspect of the service that we deliver and we consistently exceed our own,
demanding, benchmarks. This has been the case for many years, but is a considerable achievement
for 2018; during the year we completed the complex task of a complete migration to the leading
corporate-cloud provider without any interruption to our processes. Transitions such as these are
fraught with unforeseen difficulties. Our investment in meticulous planning and testing has paid
significant dividends.

During the year we consolidated our Insuretech efforts and achieved a significant further growth
in our productivity — in the last three years just short of 17%. We manage our human resources
with immense care and ali of our gains have been achieved through natural staff turnover. We
have some further progress toc make, but at a less rapid rate.

Health insurance is perhaps the most complex of all forms of general insurance. In the current
International Classification of Diseases from the WHO there are some seventy thousand codes in
total with up to ten thousand diagnoses. Combined with differing benefits, principally between
corporate and private customers, our Customer Service Officers face considerable challenges in
the initial authorisation of every new claim. Our investment in DELOS automatically validates
these variables: during 2018 98.4% of claims were authorised at first contact. We have also
invested significantly in our Centres of Clinicai Excelience whereby a number of specialist, expert
teams manage the complex claims pathways foowing first contact. The complexity of medicine
is now accelerating at an unparalleled rate.

An important measure of our commitment to our customers is found in adjudications made
against us by the Financial Ombudsman’s Service (FOS). In the last 22 years, where we have settied
some £2.2bn in claims costs, we have had but 17 complaints against us upheld — one in 2018.

Unlike most insurers we do not measure our progress by virtue of premium increases. Indeed, we
devote considerable efforts in assisting our customers to maintain their coverage whilst reducing
the premiums, often very considerably. Shared Responsibility — co-payment at a range of pre-
selected annual rates - has been most effective, for several years. Especially so for our long-
standing older customers who pay the highest premiums - reflecting the inevitable relationship,
in all healthcare systems, between advancing years and hospitalisation,

We have also achieved satisfactory performance with the non-technical, capital account.
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We have adopted a very low risk-appetite over the last three years in our anticipation of significant
political and economic turbulence. In turn we have achieved our goal of rate of return in excess
of CPL. At the year-end our cumulative performance for 2018 was well in excess of every major
domestic and international index.

We benefit from a strong balance sheet, reflecting our status as an independent insurer. We
therefore see no good reason in the months ahead to increase significantly our risk-appetite.

Perhaps the greatest business risk, especially for firms in financial services, is that of cyber-
crime. We devote significant resources to the protection of our customers and the business from
cyber-attacks. We are weli-accredited in this task by virtue of our 85:1SO 27001 certification for
information risk management processes, In turn we have built sophisticated, layered defences
to protect against intrusion. We also measure ourselves against best practice and draw useful
guidance from the NCSC. We established a new Board Committee - The Security Advisory
Committee - at the end of 2018 and as a result benefit from the very highest levels of external,
independent advice. No connected organisation can be immune from penetration, but we have
put in place sound defences, in depth, that are kept under constant review.

I am delighted to welcome Mr Jasper Gill FRCS as a new Non-Executive Director. Mr Gill is a highly
respected practising surgeon specialising in breast cancer - the most common cancer in the UK
and in turn in our own claims experience,

This Company has absolute clarity of purpose from which we have not wavered. This is supported
by meticulous strategic planning over different time thresholds. Our investment in Insuretech,
a strategic imperative, now drives almost all of our underlying processes. In addition to being
self-financing through advances in productivity, the technology has delivered a much-improved
experience for our customers. From first contact we can authorise claims with certainty that was
simply not possible five or so years ago.

The years ahead hold many challenges; perhaps the most significant will arise from advances in
genomics, both in the form of biclogic drugs and, significantly, cell reprogramming. We sense
that despite the discoveries that have already been made the scientific community remains at the
threshold of this new field of medicine. How treatment might be funded equitably by the state,
let alone through insurance, remains to be seen.

| thank the staff of WPA for their efforts and commitment throughout the year. We look forward

to 2019 with confidence, despite the short-term political unpredictability.
Y

AR
The Rt‘Hon The Earl of Cromer
19 March 2019 o
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Western Provident Association Limited is a company limited by guarantee; it is domiciled,
incorporated and registered in England and Wales under number 00475557. The Directors here
present their annual report together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Strategy

The WPA strategy remains unchanged - the pursuit of quality in all that we do. As a not-for-profit
organisation we are not entangled with the conflict between shareholder returns and long-term
investment decisions and consequently have continued to invest in our people and processes,
which for our customers means the delivery of excellent service. The omission of profit from our
strategic objectives coupled with industry leading technology provides a compelling customer
proposition, differentiating us from our competitors.

Qur status as a company limited by guarantee is not common in today’s financial services
marketplace. We are reliant solely on our own resources, with no readily available access to
external funding or the ability to raise share capital. Consequently our resources over the last
century have been carefully managed and our strength is evident in the Statement of Financial
Position, more commonly known as the balance sheet.

It is important to distinguish between the three primary activities of the WPA Group: medical
insurance, healthcare administration and management of the investment portfolio. The insurance
and healthcare administration operations include all interactions with current customers and we
airm to break-even on our customer relationships in the medium-term,.

The investment portfolio has the modest objective of maintaining the real value of the portfolio.
Capital preservation, not growth, is paramount. Assets backing in-force business, as measured
on a Solvency Il Own Risk and Solvency Assessment {ORSA) basis, are heid in UK Government
stocks. Assets in excess of the ORSA requirements are heid in a diversified range of investments
across different sectors and geographies. This investment strategy is designed to demonstrate
the unquestionable financial stability of the business, whilst providing confidence that supports
sustainable relationshipsin the long-term. As a general insurer it is necessary to recognise that our
financial strength supports, but does not subsidise, the promises made to our current customers.

Review of 2018

2018 has proven a successful year, with the Association demonstrating its credentials as a healthy
vibrant business. During 2018 we authorised 98.4% (2017 98.7%) of all properly presented
claims, and in volume paid 4.3% more than the previous year.

We believe this demonstrates our philosophy of looking after our customers. We are not pre-
occupied with acquiring new customers, with offers of gadgets or shopping vouchers, but instead
are discerning as to our underwriting approach. By being selective as to who joins the Association,
coupled with our proprietary intelligent automated claims assessment system — Delos - we are
able to process all claims with quality, accuracy and certainty.
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Qur customer service ethos is also evident in our FOS record, with only 9 FOS adverse adjudications
in the last 10 years. We receive 70% less complaints per 1,000 customers than the medical
insurance industry average.

The financial results of the business remain sound. Top line premium income increased marginally
as did underlying customer numbers. The key performance indicator of like-for-like premium
income, assuming all healthcare administration and corporate deductible contracts were fully
insured increased at a similar rate. The financial results of the Association are intertwined with
the health of our customers and during 2018 the severity of the medical conditions experienced
by our customers was on average at lower cost and explains the lower than forecast claims ratio
of 74.1% (2017: 78 6%). Productivity improvements enabled administrative expenses to be
managed in line with inflation. Overall the insurance and healthcare administration business
reported an underlying profit before tax of £4.5m. (2017: £0 4m).

The investment portfolio has had a satisfactory year returning 2.9% (2017: 1.3%) — marginally
ahead of its target of inflation, thus maintaining the real value of the portfolio. We maintain
our commitment to hold UK Government stock to back our ORSA. The portfolio remains very
defensively positioned, with 76% in cash and UK Government stock and the remaining 24% in
return-seeking assets, mainly corporate bonds and strategic long-term equity holdings. Over the
last few years we have progressively reduced the equity content of the portfolio, as worldwide
equity markets appeared to overheat, an approach that has avoided the double-digit negative
returns that would have been experienced in 2018.

Regulatory capital coverage remains strong at 6.2 times the Solvency Capital Requirement (2017,
4.8 times),

Future outlook

The economic outlook for the UK will continue to be the subject of endless debate in light of
the United Kingdom’s impending departure from the European Union. Whilst we are not
immune from adverse macroeconomic conditions we are not overly concerned with the nature
of the withdrawal. We are a specialist health insurer operating exclusively in the UK and are not
reliant on EU suppliers or customers. All of our policies offer customers options to reduce their
premiums, thus enabling them to continue with their healthcare in the event that they need to
reconfigure their cost of cover. Similarly, we have options available for employers or individuals
who want to expand their level of cover. With record low unemployment and changes to the UK's
labour market, private health insurance will remain a valuable employment benefit and effective
staff retention tool.
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Key performance indicators

Key performance indicators (KPls) are reported to the Directors each month as part of the regular
management reporting and form an important element of the control environment. They
indicate where actual experience is varying from plan and prior year and, with our knowledge
of our industry and market, help us to benchmark our performance. KPIs are for management
purposes and therefore do not necessarily follow statutory accounting rules. One such example is
gross revenues on a like-for-like basis. The gross revenue from fully insured customers is premium
income; the premium income from custamers with a high corporate deductible policy does not
reflect the volume of work processed in the same way as a customer with no deductible; and
the gross revenue from a client of WPA Protocol Plc (Protocol} is an administration fee. It makes
no sense to combine these by straight addition (the statutory basis) since that gives no realistic
measure of how the overall business is growing. However, by adding all payments made on
behalf of Corporate Deductible and Protocol customers together with premiums and Protocol’s
administration income we arrive at a meaningful like-for-like gross revenue figure across the
Group.

An extract of some of the KPls reported to the Board each month are as follows:

2018 2017

Gross revenues (like-for-tike) £167.3m £163.8m Premiums, plus claims for
Corporate  Deductible and
Protocol clients plus Protocol
administration income.

Combined operating ratio 96.8% 9950, Ratio of claims, commissions and
expenses (excluding Corporate
Social Responsibility donations)
to premiums.

Solvency Il SCR coverage (unaudited) 6.2 43 Available regulatory capital
divided by standard formula
assessment.

Net investment return 29% 1 3% Return as a percentage of
portfolio value, net of fees.

Claims authorised 98.4% 98.7% Percentage of properly

presented claims authorised.

The Company takes the exemption available under s414CA(4)b Companies Act 2006, from
including a non-financial information statement in the Strategic Report.



Board of Directors
The members of the Board who served during the year are shown on page 13.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group has an established risk management framework covering all material activities, this
culminates in the ORSA which is considered by the Board on a regular basis. The following are
considered to be the principal risks affecting the business and how management mitigates any
adverse impact.

Insurance risk. Medical insurance is short-tail business and thus the ultimate claims outcome
of each year can be predicted with reasonable accuracy at the end of each accounting period.
Adverse claims frequency or severity could result in short-term claims costs exceeding premium
levels. Management regularly review underwriting ratios and take action as necessary to ensure
that results within a financial year are aligned to the medium-term strategy of break-even across
the insurance portfelio. Policies’ terms and premium rates are reviewed at least annuaily or
more frequently where performance deviates from expectations. Contracts with major hospital
networks are negotiated annually and when our customers require complex medical treatment
we work with the healthcare providers to ensure that our policyholders obtain value for money.
The financial strength of the business does not necessitate an extensive reinsurance arrangement.
The reinsurance coverage during the year was limited to a facultative policy.

Operational risk. The business is exposed to a variety of operational risks in respect of systems,
premises and people, including the risk of cyber-attack. To the extent possible the Board has
sought independent assurance over the robustness of the operational practices. Such assurances
include Cyber Essentials Plus and the following 15O accreditations: 9001 Quality Management,
27001 Information Security Management, 22301 Business Continuity Management, 14001
Environmental Management. The Group administers bank accounts on behalf of our Corporate
Deductible and Protocol customers, for the purpose of claims settlement. The customer retains
the economic benefit of the balance of the bank accounts, as such the balances of these bank
accounts are not recognised on the Group’s financial statements. The Group annually commissions
an International Standards for Assurance Engagements Service Auditor Report (I5AE 3402) on the
procedures undertaken on behalf of our large corporate customers. We have well established and
regularly tested business continuity plans that ensure we can continue to serve our customers in
the face of adverse events. For example, the Group has sole occupancy of a dedicated business
continuity site which, coupled with a resilient IT platform, ensures continued operation in the
event of an incident at the primary site in Taunton.

Financial risks

Market risk. The Group's primary market risk is through the equity exposure. From a solvency
perspective the impact of market risk is eliminated through holding low risk investments, typically
cash and UK Government stock which meet both solvency and current liabilities requirements.
Equity risk is managed through the investment Committee's careful selection and regular monitoring
of investments which have a sound track record or management expertise in the chosen sector or
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geography. The equity portfolio is well diversified to protect against adverse market movements in
any one segment. The Investment Committee is authorised by the Board to use derivative instruments
solely to protect the value of the portfolio.

Credit risk. The Group's primary credit risk is through deposit institutions, with investments heid in
corporate bonds and, to a lesser extent, the holdings in Government stock. Credit risk also prevails
through exposure to policyholder debtors, which are subject to robust credit control procedures,
further protected by our policy to hold claims payments until any customer arrears are settled. Credit
risk is mitigated by limiting the exposure to any individual financial or corporate institution based on
their credit rating, and by diversifying investments across a number of counterparties.

interest rate risk. The Group’s investment policy is to typically hold debt instruments until maturity
and thus eliminate volatility from asset valuations. The returns on cash instruments are dependent
on interest rates. The Investment Committee seeks to optimise returns based on the counterparty
restrictions described above.

Currency risk. The Group has exposure to worldwide currencies as a result of collective investment
schemes withinternational holdings. The primary exposure is to the impact of US Dollar rates on global
equity holdings coupled with the Dollar exchange rate by virtue of US cash holdings. The Investment
Committee has discretion to use derivative instruments to protect the Sterling value of the portfolio.
A secondary exposure is in respect of the cost of running the World Class Service subsidiary in India.

Ligquidity risk. The Greup monitors its working capital on a daily basis. The cash instruments held
within the investment portfolio ensure that there are always sufficient funds available to meet all
cperational requirements.

Pension risk. The Pension Scheme has a fully implemented Liability Driven Investment strategy.
This has eliminated all market risk and immunised the Scheme against future deficits as a result
of inflatien and interest rate risk, as the Gilts held by the Scheme are designed to match the
expected outflows of the Scheme. The primary residual risk faced by the Scheme is longevity risk.

Going concern. The Group has demonstrable liguid resources of £146.9m (2017: £149.9m) in
excess of liability requirements and as such the Board is satisfied that the Group remains a going
concern,

This report was approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

Nathan Irwin
Chief Financial Officer
19 March 2019
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Directors’ interests

At no time during the year did any of the Directors have a material interest in a significant contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries. During the year the Company purchased insurance on
behalf of Directors and Officers against any liability or breach of trust in relation to the Company and
any of its subsidiaries. Details of related party transactions are shown in note 19.

Employees
The Company is fully committed to developing all employees to achieve its business objectives and is
proud of providing a place of opportunity through its training development programmes,

Employees at all levels are aware of the broad aims and objectives of the organisation and are provided
with full information on all matters concerning them. This is facilitated by the Visions & Values group,
elected by staff. There is full involvement and communication of the Company’s performance through
monthly company meetings, monthly quality statistics and the partnership-for-excellence reward
scheme.

The Company is an equal opportunity employer. As part of this policy the Company gives full and
fair consideration to applications for employment made by disabled persons. Full regard is given
to training, career development and promotion of disabled persons recruited into the Company or
becoming disabled during their empioyment.

The Board is committed to supporting all staff in balancing their personal responsibilities with work
commitments; accordingly over 25% of the workforce have chosen to utilise flexible or part-time
working arrangements.

Statement of disclosure of informatien to the auditor

The Directors confirm, at the date of this report and so far as each of them is aware, that firstly there is
na information relevant to the audit of the Group’s consolidated and Company’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018 of which the auditor is unaware; and secondly they have taken
all steps that ought to have been undertaken as part of the duties of a director to ensure awareness
of any audit information and to establish that the Group’s and Company’'s auditor is aware of that
information. This confirmation is given and shall be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of
section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

Independent auditor
A resolution to reappoint Deloitte LLP as auditor will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under company law the
Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group
for that period. In preparing these financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires
that directors:

i. properly select and apply accounting policies;

ii. present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant,
reliable, comparable and understandable information;

iii. provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are
insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial perfermance; and

iv. make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Group’s and Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

Signed on behalf of the Boey

Nathan Irwin
Chief Financial Officer
19 March 2019
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The Board, comprising Executive and Non-Executive Directors, determines the strategic direction of
the Group and is responsible for the Group's system of corporate governance. The Independent Non-
Executive Directors are at least equal in number to the Executive and, with their particularly wide
experience, their role is to bring independent judgement to the Board. A meeting of the Independent
Non-Executives, both with and without the Chairman, is held annually. The Independent Non-
Executive Directors have access to any information they require and, as part of their role, regularly
spend time working alongside staff in all parts of the business.

The Board has a formal Code of Conduct and schedule of matters specifically reserved to it, which can
only be amended by the Board itself and which is reviewed annually. The structure and composition
of the Board is kept under review and the Board considers the identification and nomination of new
Directors and the continuation of existing Directors in office. There is a formal procedure for Directors
to obtain independent professional advice, should this be necessary in the furtherance of their duties.

The Company is regulated by the Prudential Regulation Authority (PRA) and the Financial Conduct
Authority (FCA) as a general insurer. The Board and senior management are regularly briefed on
existing and proposed regulation. The Company routinely monitors its compliance with regulatory
requirements at all levels and reports the findings formally to the Audit and Risk Committees.

Government Framework

The Board reviews the Group's strategic plans and objectives annually and approves budgets and
plans in light of these. The Board is involved in and formally approves the risk appetite statements
and related policies, and the assessment of risk and appropriate controls. There are detailed financial
control procedures, applicable across the business, and the Board receives regular reports on
financial and operational matters. These include monthly ORSA snapshots, Treating Customers Fairly
information and reports on financial performance both against the approved business plan and by
comparison with the previous year and reporting on investment performance, liquidity and solvency.

The Board committees are set out on pages 1010 12 and have written statements of principles, which
clearly define authorities and responsibilities. All committees meet regularly and their minutes are
placed on the Agenda of the Board. Committee remits and membership are reviewed annually; some
of the committees comprise members who are not directors, where they bring a particular expertise.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is composed of Independent Non-Executive Directors who meet regularly
with senior management, the internal and the external auditors and ensure an independent and
professional relationship is maintained with the auditors. The Committee assists the Board in ensuring
that the external audit is conducted in a thorough, objective and cost effective manner. The nature
and extent of any proposed non-audit work to be carried out by the auditors requires the Committee’s
approval. The Committee holds a formal private meeting at least once a year with the internal and
external auditors.
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Investment Committee

The Investment Committee has clear investment guidelines based on the objectives of the Group and
emphasis is placed on communicating these to all appointed investment managers. The overriding
aim of the investment strategy is to comfortably maintain the Group’s capital to meet regulatory
requirements.

Medical Advisory & Clinical Governance Committee

The Medical Advisary & Clinical Governance Committee provides advice to the Board and to senior
management on any medical matters related to private medical insurance. It advises on developments
in medicine and medical treatments, on appropriate levels of benefit and related professional fees, on
specialists’ recognition and clinical governance in private practice and on rules applied to medical
matters in the Group's insurance and administration contracts.

Nominations Committee

The Nominations Committee leads the process for new Board appointments and makes
recommendations to the Board to ensure the establishment and maintenance of a balanced,
experienced and objective Board of Directors.

Personnel Committee

The Personnel Committee reviews and monitors the development and maintenance of effective
human resource strategies. The Group has rigorous recruitment and selection procedures, coupled
with induction, further training and regular assessments of all employees.

The Committee reviews human resource strategies and practices for compliance with current
employment legislation, to ensure structured training in both business specific skills and, where
appropriate, personal development.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is composed of Independent Non-Executive Directors who determine
policy to ensure that Executive Directors are fairly and properly rewarded for their individual and
collective contributions to the Group’s overail performance. The composition of the Committee
ensures that such remuneration is settled by Board members who have no personal interest in the
outcome of their decision. The Committee determines the remuneration strategy and policy for all
senior staff and makes recommendations to the Board in respect of Executive Directors' remuneration.

Any performance rewards for senior managers and Executive Directors are explicitly linked to their
performance and also take account of the performance of the Group as a whole.
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Risk Committee

The Risk Committee acts as a steward of the Risk Management Framework and provides objective
oversight of the risk management process with regard to risk identification, assessment, appetite and
management. It supports the Board in ensuring WPA remains compliant with relevant legislation,
advises the Board on the appropriateness of the ORSA and promotes a risk awareness culture
throughout the Group. The Committee receives assurance from a variety of sources provided by both
dedicated WPA staff and professional third party organisations. The Board retains overall responsibility
for internal control and the identification and management of business risk.

Security Advisory Committee
The Group has established a Security Advisory Committee, utilising external technical specialists to
advise the Group on cyber-security best practice.

Risk Management

The Board and senior management are responsible for the identification and evaluation of key risks
applicable to the Group, whether from internal or external sources. The assessment of risk is kept
under regular review by the Risk Committee and includes strategic and corporate issues, insurance,
operations, financial (including market, credit and liquidity), pensions, Group and other risks related
to the achievement of the Group's business objectives.

The implementation and management of the internal control and risk management programme has
been delegated to the Chief Financial Officer. Control policies and procedures are clearly set out in
the Group’s Risk Management Framework which captures the risks faced by the business together
with the related risk appetite, mitigating controls and the monitoring procedures that provide regular
oversight and review. The Risk Management Framework reviews are captured in the ORSA and
reported on a regular basis to the Board.

The Board is satisfied that the system of internal control and risk management is appropriate for the
Group’s needs.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE
\XP/_\ MEMBERS OF WESTERN PROVIDENT
ASSOCIATION LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In Qur opinion:

. the financial statements of Western Provident Association Limited (the ‘parent company’} and
its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent
company’s affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended,;

. the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union;

. the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006; and

- the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
the consclidated income statement;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

. the consolidated statements of changes in equity;

. the consolidated statement of financial position;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows;

. the parent company statement of inancial position;

. the parent company statement of changes in equity;

. the parent company statement of cash flows;

. the statement of accounting policies; and

. the related notes 1 to 22 excluding the capital risk management disclosures in note 20.3
calculated in accordance with the Solvency Il regime which are marked as unaudited.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as
applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} (ISAs (UK)})
and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We areindependent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting
Council’s (the 'FRC's’} Ethical Standard as applied to public interest entities, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We confirm that the non-
audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the group or the parent
company.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate te provide a basis
for our opinion.

Summary of our audit approach

The key audit matters that we identified in the current year were: |
. Insurance reserving

. Valuation of unlisted investments

Key audit matters
Within this report, any new key audit matters are identified with @ and
any key audit matters which are the same as the prior year identified

with .
Materialit The materiality that we used for the group financial statements was £1,227k |
y which was determined on the basis of gross written premium. !
. Our group audit included the audit of trading subsidiary entities in the
Scoping

United Kingdom.

Significant changes

There have been no significant changes to our audit approach.

in our approach

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are required by ISAs {UK) to report in respect of the following matters where:

. the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

. the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt about the group’s or the parent company’s ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date
when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current pericd and include the most significant assessed
risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters included
those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the
audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Insurance reserving @

Key audit matter
description

Insurance reserving is the most significant area of management estimate

within the group’s financial statements. Our key areas of focus were:

1. Appropriateness of the reserving model: There is arisk that changes
to WPA's book of business result in the model no longer caiculating
reserves completely and accurately.

2. Mechanical accuracy of data input and calculation for large
corporate reserving: The calculation is mechanical and complex
due to the use of multiple reports from the policy and claims |
administration system and the bespoke nature of the contracts.

Claims reserves include an incurred but not reported amount of £9.5m
at the end of 2018 compared to £9.7m at the end of the previous period.

This key audit matter is referred to by the Board in their Strategic Report,
section Il of the financial statements on significant judgements and
estimates and the insurance risk management note 20.2.

How the scope of our
audit responded to
the key audit matter

Appropriateness of the reserving model
We evaluated the design and implementation of key internal controls ¢
regarding this key audit matter.

We have tested the consistency of the reserving model by comparing
each element of the reserve to those included in the previous year, and
auditing these individually.

Given the short-tailed nature of the group’s insurance risk we analysed
the run-off of the 2018 reserve post year-end to assess if the run-off
curve is in line with expectation.

We analysed potential changes to the group’s book, risk exposure and
recent claims trends to determine if a change in the reserving model was
required as a result of this.

We tested the mechanical accuracy of calculations and formulas
through re-performance using our IT specialists to assist in testing the
completeness and accuracy of the key underlying data used in reserving
where appropriate.




How the scope of our
audit responded to
the key audit matter
(continued)

Mechanical accuracy of data input and calculation for large
corporate reserving

We evaluated the design and implementation of key internal controls
regarding this key audit matter.

We performed tests of detail for a sample of large corporate customers
included in the reserving calculations and related manual data entries
back to supporting contractual information.

We performed analytics on the model that management use in the
calculation for the large corporate reserve to assess for consistency and
accuracy given its inherent complexity.

Where appropriate, we tested the completeness and accuracy of the key
underlying data used in the reserving calculation.

Key observations

Overall we are satisfied that the reserving model, which has been
consistently applied with the prior year, is appropriate for the size and
complexity of the group’s insurance risk.

Based on the work performed we concluded that the mechanical
accuracy of data input and calculation for large corporate reserving is
appropriate.

Valuation of unlisted investments @

Key audit matter
description

The group holds an unlisted equity investment of £10m (2017: £5m) in
a start-up company. This increased valuation is due to fair value gains
during the year. Management made a judgement around the fair-value
measurement of this investment.

The valuation of this investment requires significant management
judgement and is inherently uncertain given the start-up nature of the
investment. The judgements include consideration on whether there is
a reliable fair value for this investment, and whether the investment is
impaired,

This key audit matter is referred to by the Board in their Strategic Report,
section lil of the financial statements on significant judgements and
estimates and the financial risk management note 20.1a).
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e

How the scope of our | We have evaluated the design and implementation of key internal ‘
audit responded to controls regarding the valuation of the investment. |
the key audit matter i
We have reviewed management’s judgement paper on the proposed |
valuation approach for this investment. i
We engaged the assistance of our financial instruments specialists, to

independently test the approach to valuing the unlisted investment -
under IAS 39 and IFRS 13.

We have evaluated whether the unlisted investment would need to be
held at a value different to management’s valuation, taking into account
suitable external sources available to inform the share price of the
investment as at 31 December 2018. This included agreeing the latest
share issue price to Companies House records and review of the latest
available audited financial statements of the investment.

We have performed a news search to evaluate whether there is any
publicly available information on the progress of the start-up business
that would impact upon management’s valuation.

We have reviewed the disclosures made in section lit of the financial
statements on significant judgements and estimates and the financial
risk management note 20.1a}) to assess whether the nature of
judgements and estimates made by management on this investment
are appropriately disclosed.

Key observations Overall we found management’s approach to value the unlisted
investment at fair-value appropriate,

Whilst the valuation of a start-up business is inherently judgementat, we
did not find any indicators that the investment should be impaired at
the end of 2018.

We have found the disclosures in section Il of the financial statements |
and note 20.1a) to be in line with the judgements and estimates made ‘
by management. |

Our application of materiality

We define materiality as the magnpitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or
influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work.



WPA

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a
whole as follows:

[ {Group financial statements Parent Company financial statements’
Materiality £1,227%(2017:£1,253k) £1,116k (2017 £1,240k) ;
Basis for 1.10% of Gross Written Premium 1.05% of Grass Written Premiums 1
determining {20171 14% of Gross Written {2017, 1.1270 of Gross Written !
materiality Premium) Premium)

We have used gross written premium as the benchmark for our materiality
to reflect the fact that the group’s main trading entity, the parent
company, is limited by guarantee and therefore there are no shareholders
monitoring profitability or dividend potential. Gross written premium best
reflects the level of business conducted in the year.

Rationale for the
benchmark applied

Group materiality
£1.2m

Component
materiality range
£00Imto £1.1m

GWP £112m

3 GWP Audit Committee

reporting threshold
£0.06m

B Group materiality

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in
excess of £61k (2017: £63k), as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted
reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that
we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.

An overview of the scope of our audit
Our Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment,
including group-wide controls, and assessing the risks of material misstatement at the Group level.

Based on that assessment, we focused our Group audit scope on the UK trading subsidiaries which are
consolidated in the financial statements. These were subject to a full scope statutory audit, executed
at levels of materiality applicable to each individual entity, in the range £10k to £1,166k. Audit work to
respond to the risks of material misstatement was performed by the Group audit engagement team.

The Group Engagement Partner is also the Audit Partner for the group’s UK trading subsidiaries.
The Group has a subsidiary in India which has a non-coterminous year-end. As this subsidiary is not
significant to the group audit we have performed analytical procedures, rolling forward the latest
audited financial statements for the March 2018 year-end.
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At Group level we also tested the consolidation process and carried out analytical procedures to
confirm our conclusion that there were no significant risks of material misstatement of the aggregated
financial information of the remaining components not subject to audit or audit of specified account
balances.

1% 1% 1%

Profit
Revenue Net assets
before tax

M Full audit scope M Full audit scope B Full audit scope

@ Review at Group level m Review at Group level B Review at Group level

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materiaily
misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’ responsibilities, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial staternents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the
parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

Details of the extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud are set out below.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
FRC's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s
report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and then design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, including
obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Identifying and assessing potential risks related to irregularities

Inidentifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud

and non-compliance with laws and regulations, our procedures included the following:

. enquiring of management, internal audit and the audit committee, including obtaining and
reviewing supporting documentation, concerning the group’s policies and procedures refating
to:

o identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were
aware of any instances of non-compliance;

o  detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any
actual, suspected or alleged fraud;

o theinternal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance with
laws and regulations;

. discussing among the engagement team and involving relevant internal specialists, including
tax, financial instruments and IT specialists regarding how and where fraud might occur in the
financial statements and any potential indicators of fraud. As part of this discussion, we identified
potential for fraud in the following areas:

0 Insurance reserving; and
o  Valuation of unlisted investments
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. obtaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the group operates in,
focusing on those laws and regulations that had a direct effect on the financial statements or
that had a fundamental effect on the operations of the group. The key laws and requlations we
considered in this context included the UK Companies Act, pension legislation, tax legislation. In
addition, compliance with regulatory and solvency requirements are fundamental to the group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Audit response to risks identified

As a result of performing the above, we identified insurance reserving and valuation of unlisted
investments as key audit matters. The key audit matters section of our report explains the matters in
more detail and also describes the specific procedures we performed in response to those key audit
matters.

In addition to the above, aur procedures to respond to risks identified included the following:

. reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to
assess compliance with relevant laws and requlations discussed above;

. enquiring of management, the audit committee and in-house legal counsel concerning actual
and potential litigation and claims;

. performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may
indicate risks of material misstatement due to fraud;

. reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports
and reviewing correspondence with HMRC, the PRA, the FCA; and

. in addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the
appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessing whether the judgements
made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluating the
business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course
of business.

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all
engagement team members including internal specialists and remained alert to any indications of
fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

. the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements
in the strategic report or the directors' report.



Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate
for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

. the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of
directors’ remuneration have not been made.

We have nothing to report in respect of this matter.

Other matters

Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the audit committee, we were appointed by the Board of Directors
on 3 July 2013 to audit the financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2013 and subsequent
financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals and

reappointments of the firm is six years, covering the years ending 31 December 2013 to 31 December
2018.

Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the audit committee
Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the audit committee we are required to
provide in accordance with 1SAs (UK).

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

i S

Simon Cleveland FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

Bristol, United Kingdom

19 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017

Note £000 £'000 £:000 £000
Net insurance premium li(a)
- Premium recesvable 1(a) 111,59 114,991
- Change in unearned premium provision (256) (1,043}
Premium arising from Tnsurance contracts issued 1(a} 111,335 109,948
- Reinsurance premium payable 1(a) (3,107) (3,763)
- Change in unearned premium provision, reinsurers'share  1{a) (11) 635
Prermium ceded to reinsurers on insurance contracts issued  1{a) (3,118) (3,108)
Net insurance premium 108,217 106,840
Administration iIncome 2 2,099 1,990
Net insurance and administration income 110,316 108,830
Investment return 3 5,693 2,207
Total income 116,009 111,737
Net insurance claims H{d)
Claims pard  Gross amount 1(by (82,759) (86,798)

Less reinsurers' share 1(b) 2,809 2,646

Net claims paid 1{b) {79,950) {84,152}
Change in the net prowision for claims 1(b) (186) 208
Net insurance claims {80,136) {83,544)
Operating and administrative expenses 4(a) {25,436) (24,525)
Exceptional items in relation to the pension scheme 17 (652) (1,162)
Investment management expenses (155) (85)
Corporate Sccial Responsibility donaticns 4(b) (255) (6}
Total expenses {106,634) (109,722)
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 5 9,375 2,015
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 6 {1,848} (300)
Profit for the financial year 7.527 1,715

The notes on pages 31 to 58 form part of these accounts



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 December 2018

Profit for the financial year
Post employment actuanal gain/{loss), net of tax

Currency translation differences, net of tax

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

17

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2018

Retained Currency Reserves
earnings translation
differences
Note £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1January 2017 133411 47) 133,364
Profit for the year 1,715 1,715
Other comprehensive iIncome
- Post employment actuanal loss, net of tax 17 77 - 1774
- Currency translation differences, net of tax {2 12
At 31 December 2017 181,352 (49 183,303
Adjustment for IFRS 15 lI{a} {103} - (103)
Rewised balance at 1 January 2018 183,249 (49) 183,200
Profit for the year 7.527 - 7.527
Other comprehensive income
- Post empioyment actuana! gain, net of tax 17 1,151 - 1,151
— Currency translation differences, net of tax - 0 0
At 31 December 2018 191,927 {49) 191,878

The notes on pages 31 to 58 form part of these accounts
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

\XPI'\ POSITION

as at 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Assets Note £'000 £'000
Post employment benefits 17 13,307 12,289
Intangible assets g 892 PR
Property, plant and equipment 10 4,946 3121
Investment property " 2,712 2432
Deferred acquisition costs 4,226 1645
Financial assets 12 190,510 130 145
Loans and other receivables
- Debtors ansing out of direct Insurance operations 13 39,254 37,708
- Corporation tax recoverable - 1,671
- Other debtors 392 523
- Prepayments and accrued income 1,094 892
Cash and cash equivalents 7,186 7.030
Total assets 264,519 233,363
Liabilities
Reserves 191,878 183,303
Post employment benefits 17 634 63
Insurance liabilities
- Provision for unearned premiums 1(a) 47,695 47,428
- Claims outstanding 1{b) 9,542 0,356
Deferred tax 7 1,473 884
Trade and other payables
- Payables ansing out of direct insurance operations 5,447 5.019
- Other creditors 7,014 6,736
- Current tax habilities 836 -
Total equity and liabilities 264,519 253,363

27 The notes on pages 31 to 58 form part of these accounts



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS WPA

for the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Note £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from/{used by) operaticns 14 7091 12033
Net tax recovered 1,013 45
Net (withdrawals)/receipts from financial assets {6,723) 5968
Net payments for investment property (274) 2433
Net cash from operating activities 1,107 2,527
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of intangible fixed asset (861) {987
Furchases of property, plant and equipment {128) (227
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 38 2
Net cash used in investing activities (951} 11,2123
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 156 1,315
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of year 7,030 8717
Currency translation differences 4] 12
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 7,186 7,030

The notes on pages 31 to 58 form part of these accounts



PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF
\XP/_\ FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Assets Note £'000 £'000
Post employment benefits 17 13.307 12,259
Investments in group undertakings 8 934 3
Intangible assets 9 892 893
Property, plant and equipment 10 4,894 5,044
Deferred acquisition costs 4,226 1,613
Financial assets 12 190,510 180,145
Loans and other receivables
- Debtors arnising cut of direct insurance operations 13 39,254 37,708
- Amounts owed by Group undertakings 2,965 2,515
- Corporation tax recoverable - 1.577
- Other debtors 1 i
- Prepayments and accrued income 1,012 838
Cash and cash equivalents 2,449 4,028
Total assets 260,444 250,629
Liabilities
Reserves 188,781 181.021
Post employment benefits 17 634 537
Insurance liabilities
- Provision for unearned premiums 1{a) 47,695 47,428
- Claims outstanding 1{b) 9,542 9,356
Deferred tax 7 1,473 884
Trade and other payables
- Payables arising out of direct insurance operations 5447 5019
- Other creditors 6,098 6,284
- Current tax habilities 774 -
Total equity and liabilities 260,444 250,629

The Company 1s domiciled, ncorporated and registered m England under number 00475557

The accounts on pages 25 1o 58 were approved Dy the Board of Directors on 19 March 2016 and were signed on its behalf by

eIy <Y
The Rt Hon The Earl of Cramer
CHAIRMAN

Nathan Irwin
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

29 The notes an pages 31 to 58 form part of these accounts



PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2018

WPA

Retained Currency Reserves
earnings translation
differences

Note £'000 £000 £'000
At 1January 2017 131,399 181,394
Profit for the year 1.397 1,397
Other comprehensive iIncome
- Post employment actuarial loss, net of tax 17 1774, 1,774
At 31 December 2017 181,021 - 181,021
Profit for the year 6,609 - 6.609
Other comprehensive income
- Post employment actuarial gain, net of tax 17 1,151 - 1,151
At 31 December 2018 188,781 - 188,781
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Note £'000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from/(used by) operations 14 4,956 [4,846G1
Net tax recovered 1,144 145
Net (withdrawals)/receipts from financial assets (6,723) 5,968
Net cash from operating activities (623) 2,267
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of intangible fixed assets {861) {987}
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (133) (204
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 38 2
Net cash used in investing activities (956} 1,189;
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,579 1,073
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4,028 2,950
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2,449 4,024

The notes on pages 31 to 58 form part of these accounts
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\xpl_\ ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 December 2018

I.  Basis of presentation

The Group and Parent Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
international Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations Committee (IFRS and {FRIC} as
adopted by the European Union. As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no income
statement of the Parent Company is presented. The presentation and functiona! currency of these
financial statements is pounds Sterling.

Il. Basis of accounting

These consolidated financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006 and IFRS as defined by IAS 1. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of land and buildings, financial assets and financial
liabilities {including derivative instruments) at fair value through income. The preparation of financial
statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in lIt Significant
estimates and judgements.

The consolidated accounts incorporate the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries, drawn
up to 31 December 2018. Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries are
consistent with the policies adopted by the Group. The principal accounting policies are set out below,

{a) Income

Premiums receivable relate to the premiums on contracts incepted during the year, irrespective of
whether they relate in part to a later accounting period. Premiums exclude taxes and levies based
thereon. All premiums receivable relate to medical insurance and are written in the United Kingdom,
Channel Istands or the Isle of Man. Unearned premiums represent the proportion of premiums written
in the year that relate to the unexpired term of policies in force at the year-end date, calculated on
a basis expected to match the related claims risk profile. Net insurance premium income represents
income earned during the year.

Premium debtors include premiums relating to policies incepted during the year where the premium
may be due at the balance sheet date or not due until the following year. Reinsurance premiums
payable relate to contracts entered into during the year. The reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums
relate to the unexpired part of the policy in force at the balance sheet date. Administration income
represents amounts receivable under healthcare administration contracts, Where contracts span
more than one financial year the recognition of payments made in advance are deferred until the
following year.

In the current year, the Group has transitioned to IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers,
which establishes a principles based approach for revenue recognition and uses the concept of
recognising revenue when, or as, perfermance obligations are satisfied and the control of goods and
services is transferred. The adoption has resulted in a change to the timing of revenue recognition for
the administrative income generated by WPA Protocol Plc.
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The Group has applied the cumulative effect method for the transition and therefore previous periods
are not restated.

There is no impact on the Parent Company financial statements; the impact on the Group financial
statements is shown in the table below.

Consolidated income statement 2018 2017

Administrative income

Under previous standard 2,083 1,091
Under IFRS 15 2,099 1,979
Impact of adoptio;f IFRS 15 16 {11}

The impact of taxation would be the adjustment to profit on ordinary activities before tax at the
prevailing rate of taxation; 19% in the current yet {2017: 19.25%),

Consolidated statement of financial position 2018 2017
£'000 £'000

Reserves

Under previcus standard 191,968 183,303

Under IFRS 15 191,878 183.200

Impact of adoption of tFRS 15 (90) (103)

Other creditors

Under previous standard 6,924 6,730
Under IFRS 15 7,014 6,839
Impact of adoption of IFRS 15 90 103
Consolidated statement of changes in equity 2018 2017

£'000 £'6G0

Profit for the year

Under previcus standard 7511 1.715
Under IFRS 15 7,527 1,704
Impact of adoption of IFRS 15 16 any

{(b) Acquisition costs
Acquisition costs, representing direct and indirect expenses, are deferred and amortised over the
period in which the related premiums are earned.

{c} Unexpired risks

Provision is made for unexpired risks if claims, related expenses and deferred acquisition costs are
expected to exceed unearned premium after taking into account future investment income on the
unearned premium. No such provision is required at the balance sheet date (2017 nil).
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\XP/\ ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

(d} Claims

Claims incurred represent the total cost of treatment received by policyholders during the financial
year. Claims incurred comprise claims and related expenses in respect of treatment paid in the year
and changes in provisions for outstanding claims, including provisions for claims incurred but not
reported and related expenses, together with any other adjustments to claims from previous years.

Insurance creditors include notified payments due to policyholders and medical providers which have
not been settled at the year-end.

{e) Claims outstanding

Provision is made at the year-end for the ultimate cost of settling all claims incurred but not settled at
the balance sheet date, including the cost of claims incurred but not reported. The estimated cost of
claims includes direct and indirect expenses to be incurred in settling clairns.

The value of claims paid prior to the balance sheet date and the average claims settlement period
during the year, by product, is projected to estimate the total costs of outstanding claims, including
claims incurred but not reported. Allowance is made for changes or uncertainties, which may create
distortions in the underlying statistics, or changes in the business, which may cause the cost of
unsettled claims to increase or reduce.

Provision for direct and indirect expenses in settling claims is calculated by applying the propoertion of
claims outstanding to total claims paid during the year to the total claims handling costs incurred. The
provision for outstanding claims is calculated gross of any anticipated reinsurance recoveries.

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are recognised on a consistent basis as per the gross
underwritten risk. Amounts notified to reinsurers are included within reinsurance debtors. Amounts
expected to be recoverable from insurers in respect of claims incurred but not reported are included
in reinsurance claims outstanding.

A primary aim of the Company is to ensure that the provision for outstanding claims is adequate to
meet alt such costs. The provision is monitored regularly to ensure that no pattern of adverse run- off
deviation emerges. However, given the inherent uncertainty in establishing provision for claims, it is
likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability established.

{f} Operating leases
Costs in respect of operating leases are charged to the Income Staterment as incurred.

(g} Financial assets and liabilities

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments is effective from 1 January 2018, however the Group has chosen to
apply the optional temporary exemption from 2018 as its activities are predominantly connected
with insurance, as defined by the amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. WPA Group's financial
statements as at 31 December 2015 evidence that more than 90% of total liabilities were related to
insurance business.
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Assets in the investment portfolic whose values are reflected in the financial statements at market
value are categorised as’fair value through profit and loss’ (FVTPL), therefore changes in their valuation
are taken straight to the Income Statement. Those assets acquired with the intention of being held
to maturity are separately categorised as such and carried at amortised cost, less allowances for
impairment and expected credit losses, using the effective interest rate method. Trade and other
payables/receivables are recognised at cost, less allowances for impairment and expected credit
losses, which are expected to equate to their fair value. Gains or losses on fair value through profit and
loss assets held at the balance sheet date are recorded in unrealised investment gains or fosses; those
disposed of during the year are recorded in realised investment gains or losses.

Fair value through profit and loss assets that are traded in an active market are valued at bid price on
the last stock exchange trading day of the year. The fair value of other financial assets for which there
is no quoted market price is determined by a variety of methods including net asset values provided
by fund administrators. Directly held unlisted equities are valued at the latest traded price or at cost
less impairment in line with the requirements of 1AS 39 when there is no reliable indicator for fair
value, such as a readily available market price, observable equity transactions, current net asset value,
peer companies that could be used as proxies, general market trends of the issuer’s industry or other
economic information. Dividends on equity investments and other investment income are accounted
for when receivable.

From time to time the Company holds futures and options derivative instruments and forward currency
contracts. These securities are held to hedge exposures in equity markets, assets or transactions
denominated in foreign currencies. All derivatives are recognised at fair value through profit and loss.

{h}) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise operational cash held in bank accounts and cash in hand.

(i} Investmentsin group undertakings

In the Statermnent of Financial Position for the Parent Company, investments in group undertakings are
stated at cost or at deemed cost, less allowance for impairment, for those held at the date of transition
to IFRS. Where a subsidiary undertaking Statement of Financial Position reports a net liability position,
provision is made against any inter-company balances due only to the extent that they are deemed
irrecoverable.

(j) Foreign currencies

The results and financial position of overseas subsidiaries are translated at the average exchange
rate throughout the year and at the closing position date respectively. All resulting exchange rate
differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

{k) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are capitalised and amortised by equal annual instalments over their estimated
useful lives, which for software assets is two years, less allowances for impairment. Internally generated
software assets comprise all directly attributable costs necessary to enable the asset to be used within
the business.

(0 Property, plant and equipment

All properties held at the balance sheet date that are not treated as investment property are occupied
by the Company and other Group companies. The properties are held as freehold or with a leasehold
interest and are revalued annually. Increases in the carrying amount, greater than the value at the
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transition date, arising on revaluation of land and buildings are credited to the revaluation surplus
in reserves, Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are recognised in other
comprehensive income. All other changes in carrying value are charged to the Income Statement. Each
year, the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged
to the income Statement and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost, net of any related deferred
income tax, is transferred from the revaluation surplus to retained earnings. It is the Group's practice
to maintain these properties to a high standard with the costs of maintenance charged to the Income
Statement,

Tangible assets are capitalised and depreciated by equal annual instalments over their estimated useful
lives. The periods generally applicable are:

Buildings - 50 years Motor vehicles - 4years
Furniture and fittings - 6 years Computer equipment - 3 years

(m} Investment property
Investment property is valued annually by the Directors or by independent specialists. Investment
property is held at fair value unless not reliably determinable when under construction, in which case
the investment property is measured at cost until the fair value becomes reliably determinable or
construction is completed.

{n) Tax
Current tax is payable based on taxable profit for the year and tax rates which are enacted as at the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying ameunts in the consolidated financial statements.
Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of carry-forwards of
unused losses or unused tax credits are recognised as an asset when it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which these losses can be utilised.

(0} Post employment benefits

The Group has a defined benefit pension scheme (the ‘Scheme’), which closed to future accrual on 31
December 2015, and also makes contributions to Group Personal Pensions. The net pension asset or
liability recognised in the Statement of Financial Position is the fair value of the Scheme's assets less
the present value of the Scheme’s liabilities.

The pension cost for the Scheme is analysed between current service cost, past service cost and net
return on pension scheme. Past service costs, relating to employee service in prior periods arising
in the current period as a result of the introduction of, or improvement to, retirement benefits, are
recognised in the Income Statement on a straight-line basis over the period in which the increases in
benefits vest. The interest charge and interest income are recognised on a net basis and shown within
the investment return,
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The actuarial gains and losses which arise from a valuaticn and from updating the latest actuarial
valuation to reflect conditions at the balance sheet date are taken to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income for the period, net of the attributable deferred taxation. Deferred tax arises due to timing
differences between accounting treatment and tax treatment. Contributions to Group Personal
Pensions are recognised through the Income Statement when due.

Provision is made for the present value of expected costs of providing medical insurance to former
employees,

lll. Significant estimates and judgements

{a) Estimates

The most significant estimate made in the preparation of these financial statements is the estimation
of the pravision for claims incurred but not reported at the balance sheet date. The valuation method
for claims outstanding is described in section (e} of the basis of accounting. Sensitivities are shown in
note 20,

The valuation of properties is based on a range of assumptions and estimates, with reference
to empirical experience of the local property market. Considering the current macroeconomic
conditions there is a level of uncertainty that could materially affect the properties’ valuations.

The Group has holdings in collective investment funds and unlisted equities. Some underlying
investments are not listed on recognised exchanges and hence the valuations are undertaken
by management and where appropriate are based on the information provided by the relevant
investment managers.

{b) Judgements

The recognition of the Scheme asset under IFRIC 14 requires that the Company has an unconditional
right to a refund. In the event that the Scheme is wound up at the point in time when all pensions’
payments have reached their natural conclusion the Company would have the right to a refund under
the Scheme's Trust deed and rules and thus the Company is mandated to recognise the Scheme asset.
The Directors have sought external advice as to whether the trustee approval of the transfer of any
surplus to the Company represents a condition that weould permit the asset ceiling to be applied, the
conclusion reached being that the processes in place do not represent a condition under IFRIC 14. The
Directors have concluded that this judgement is the correct accounting treatment under iFRIC 14, but
also consider that the asset is unrealistic on an economic basis.

The fair value of the investment properties held by the Group was determined using methodology
based on recent market transactions of similar properties which have been adjusted for the specific
characteristics of the properties. The value of investment property is deemed to be cost if the fair value
cannot be reliably determined due to being under construction. The valuation technigues include
inputs for the investment properties that are unobservable.

Directly held unlisted equities are valued at the latest traded price which transacted in both December
2018 and January 2019.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

for the year ended 31 December 2018

1} Disclosures for insurance contracts 2018 2017
(a) Movement in unearned premiums £'000 £000
Gross  Reinsurance  Net
Balance at 1 January 48,236 {808) 47,428 47,193 153 17040
Prerniums written in the year 111,59 (32,107) 108,484 110,991 13,753) 107,223
Premiums earned during the year (111,335) 3,118 {(108,217) 109848 3108 06,8101
Balance at 31 December 48,492 (797) 47,695 18,234 S0R 17,428
2018 2017
(b) Movement in claims outstanding £'000 £'000
Gross  Reinsurance  Net 1
Balance at 1 January 9,504 {148) 9,356 9,764 1200 9,563
Moverment in claims incurred in prior years (1,247} - (1,247) i73) - 730
Claims incurred 1in the current year 84,234  (2,851) 81,383 86,611 (2,594 51,017
Claims paid dunng the year (82,759) 2,809 [79,950) 186,798) 2,644 BAIED
Balance at 31 December 9,732 (190} 9,542 9,504 148 9,356
2018 2017
{c) Movement in deferred acquisition costs £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 January 4,648 3,535
Movement In the year {422) 113
Balance at 31 December 4,226 4,648
2} Other income
Other income represents non-insurance income for services provided to third parties by subsidiary compantes
3) Investment return 2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Dwidend ncome T 383 ey
Interest receved 1,388 978
Losses on exchange rate movements (387) 0212
1,384 4n
Net gains on realisation of investments 380 a1
Unrealised investment gains 3,642 1,936
Net interest on pension scheme 287 391
5,693 2,907




4) Net operating expenses 2018 2017
(a) Other operating and administrative expenses £000 £'000
Acquisition costs 10,803 10729
Change in deferred acquisition costs 422 RREY
Adrministrative expenses 20,091 19 6R4
FSCS levy 331 220
Gross operating expenses T i 31,647 B §b_.520
Clatims handling expenses (6,211) 15,995,
25,436 23,525
2018 2017
{b) Corparate Social Responsibility donations £°000 £'000
Donations to the WPA Benevolent Foundation Limited 250
Denations to charitable activines 5 6
Total donations to benevolent and chantable activities 255 &
5) Profit on ordinary activities before tax 2018 2017
£000 £'000
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 1s stated after
Property revaluation surplus 98 98
Amortisation (867) (5621
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (372) 419]
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment g
Auditor remuneratcn for
Audit (Company £130,000 - 1 ) (148) (34
Audit related assurance services - UK regulatory compliance - {30}
Other assurance work - other services {32) {35
Operating lease costs (127) 1128)
6) Tax 2018 2017
(a) Analysis of charge in year £'000 £'000
UK corporation tax at 1900% -+ 1= 1,355
Adjustment for prior pericds 105 1501}
1,460 1601}
Qverseas tax 34 31
Total current tax 1,494 567)
Deferred tax {note 7}
Ongination and reversal of timing differences {(102) 187
Movement on post employment benefits 456 380
Total deferred tax 354 857
Tax charge for the current year 1,848 300

The principal rate of UK corporation tax was 19% for the financial year 2018

Note 6 continues overleaf.,
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(b) Factors affecting the tax charge for the year

Areconciliation of the tax charge for the year to the charge that would resuit from applying the standard UK corporation tax rate
to the profit before tax 15 given below

2018 2017

£'000 £000
Profit before tax 9,375 2015
Notional charge at UK corperation tax rate of 19 00% 1,781 388
Franked investment income not taxable {73) 1370
Permanent timing differences 120 25
Items outside the scope of UK tax (13) 118
Tax relating to overseas subsidianes 34 34
Changes In tax rates (43) 142
Adjustment to prior periods’ tax 105 (601
Deferred tax prior year (63) 550
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 1,848 300

(c) Factors that may affect future tax charges
The principal rate of UK corporation tax was 19% for the financial year 2018+ - © A 2% reduction is planned for the financial

year 2020 1t1s not anticipated that this will have a matenial impact on the Group There are no other factors that may affect future
charges

{d) Analysis of tax credit relating to components of other comprehensive income

2018 2017
£000 £°000
Before Tax After Before Tax After
tax credit tax tax credit tax
Currency translation differences - - - 2 - 2)
Movement on pension scheme (note 17} 1,386 (235} 1,151 (2.032: 345 11.687)
Other comprehensive income 1,386 (235} 1,151 12,034 345 (1.689

All 1ax credits relate to deferred tax
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7) Deferred tax Post

Pension Trading employment Other Total

scheme losses medical

benefits

Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
AT January 2017 1,200 472 a3 273 1342
Movement in provision racognised in income Statement 1380 1332 15 7o Bo71
Movement in provision recognised in ather comprehensive iIncome 345 - - 345
AL 31 Decemnber 2017 1,235 140 103 103 ‘834
Movement in provision recognised in Income Statement (456) (43} 1 146 (354}
Mavernent in provision recognised in other comprehensive income (235) - - - (235)
At 31 December 2018 {1,926) 97 107 249 (1,473)
Company
At January 2017 £1,2001 472 53 273 {362)
Movement in provision recognised in Income Statement 1330, 332: 15 n7m 867}
Moverment in provision recognised in other comprehensive income 345 - 345
At 31 December 2017 (1,235 140 108 103 1884)
Movement in provision recogrised in Income Statement (456) (43) m 146 (354)
Mavement in provision recogmsed in other comprehensive income {235) - - - {235)
At 31 December 2018 {1,926) 97 107 248 (1,473)
If the freehold property was sold at its current market value there would be a capital loss of £4,500000 i Theresa
deferred tax asset of £833,000 ¢ -+ 1 related to this capital loss, which has not been recognised, because there 15 no intention

to sell the asset  Deferred tax on the pension scheme surplus or deficit 1s provided at the rate it 1s anticipated that it will reverse.
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8) Investment in Group undertakings 2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Shares at cost 934 NEX]

The following companies are directly or indirectly wholly owned subsidianies and are included within the consolidation. Each
company 15 registered in England at Rivergate House, Blackbrook Park, Taunton, Somerset, TAT 2PE, under the number shown
against each one and has capital comprsing £1 ordinary shares in 1ssue, except where shown otherwise

WPA Healthcare Practice PLC — tnsurance interrmediary company (No  07320330)
(capital comprising £5 ordinary shares in issue}
WPA Investments Limited - Investment company (No 02591644)
WPA Protocol Pic - Claims and administration

services company (No 02755175)
WPA World Class Service {India) Private Ltd* - Data processing company
(a company registered in India with caprtal comprising INR1C ordinary shares)
WPA Health Trustee Limited - Trustee company (No 04562414}
WPA Pension Trustees Limited —Trustee company (No 04710981)
Delos [T Solutions Limited - Dormant company (No 10458139)
Self-Pay Limited - Dormant company (No 04174987)
Stoptoss Insurance Services Limited - Dormant company (No 03831968)
WPA Insurance Services Limited — Dormant company (No 02593386)
WPA [rvestments (Development) Limited - Dormant company (No 02593390
WPA Property Services Limited (incarporated 13 December 2017) - Dormant company (No 11110094)
XS Health Limited - Dormant company (No 039264871)
XS Insurance Services Limited - Dormant company (No 03783854)

*31 March accounting year-end in line with fiscal regulations in Incha

All subsidiaries held at the IFRS transition date are accounted for in accordance with IFRST, using deemed cost  The deemed
cost was the value reported i the accounts 1n accordance with UK GAAP All other subsidianes are held at costs The companies
listed as dormant or trustee are exempt from preparing, filing and requiring audited accounts under s 3944, s448A and s479A
respectively of the Comparies Act 2006



9) Intangible assets

Software Total
Group £'000 £'000
Cost orvaluation
At 1 January 2017 53} €31
Additions 937 987
At 31 December 2017 1,614 1613
Additons 861 861
At 31 December 2018 2,479 2,479
Amortisation
At 1 January 2017 158 158
Provided in the year 562 562
At 31 December 2017 720 720
Provided In the year 867 867
At 31 December 2018 1,587 1,587
Net book value at 31 December 2017 898 898
Net book value at 31 December 2018 892 892

Software Total
Company £000 £000
Cost or valuanion
At 1 January 2017 631 631
Additions 937 987
At 31 December 2017 1,618 1,618
Additions 861 861
At 31 December 2018 2,479 2479
Amortisation
At 1 January 2017 158 158
Pravided in the year 562 562
At 31 December 2017 720 720
Provided 1n the year 867 867
At 31 Decernber 2018 1,587 1,587
Net book value at 31 December 2017 898 898
Net book value at 31 December 2018 892 892

Amaortsation s shown in operating and administrative expenses
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10) Property, plant and equipment Freehold Furniture Computer Motor Total
property & fittings equipment vehicles

Group £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2017 4520 2083 2013 127 10,443
Additions 150 41 3s 227
Dispesals o 1 77,
Revaluation o~ 92
At 31 December 2017 5018 2,187 3,023 454 13,431
Additions - 15 20 93 128
Disposats - (2) (21) {69) (92)
Revaluation 98 - - - 98
At 31 December 2018 5116 2,200 3,022 487 10,825

Depreciation

At 1 January 2017 436 1,740 2,749 151 5226
Provided In the year 93 112 114 95 419
Efimination in respect of disposals 45) 1301 - 175}
At 31 December 2017 584 1,807 2,923 246 5,579
Provided in the year 98 134 46 94 372
Efirmination in respect of disposals - - (20} (43} (63)
At 31 December 2018 682 1,941 2,959 297 5879
Net bock value at 31 December 2017 4,434 380 90 217 5121
Net book value at 31 December 2018 4,434 259 63 190 4,946

Note 10 continues on opposite page ..
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Freehold Furniture Computer Motor Total

property & fittings equipment vehicles
Company £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or valuation
At 1 january 2017 1805 1,911 2.871 393 10078
Additions 123 13 37 204
Disposals ) 3 - 77
Revaluation Eh] - - 93
At 31 December 2017 3,003 1,939 2,881 428 10,363
Additions - 20 19 94 133
Disposals - (3) (21 (69) (93)
Revaluation 98 - - - 98
At 31 December 2018 5101 2,005 2,882 453 10,441
Depreciation
At 1 January 2017 186 1,576 2,711 140 4,913
Provided in the year 098 11t 118 92 417
Elimination in respect of disposals - 45] {30 - (751
At 21 December 2017 584 1,632 2,797 232 5,255
Provided in the year 98 113 54 A0 355
Ebmination in respect of disposals - - (20) (43} (63)
At 31 December 2018 682 1,755 283 279 5,547
Net book value at 31 December 2017 4,419 345 37 196 5,048
Net book value at 31 December 2018 4419 250 51 174 4,894

The properties were valued on 31 December 2017 and 2018 at open market value for existing use by the Drectors of the Company
The fair value of the properties was determined using a methodology based on recent market transactions of similar properties,
which have been adjusted for the speafic charactensucs of the properties held by the Group  If the properties had not been
revalued they would have been included at the histoncal cost of £9,402000 and cost less depreciation of £4,390000 .« 1

L TS

The Level 3 fair value measurement used for properties are those derved from a valuation technique that include inputs for the
asset that are unobservable A 5% increase in market value would result in an increase of £221,000

Depreciation is shown (n operating and administrative @xpenses
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11} Investment property

Investment property 15 measured at far value, determined using methodology based on recent market transactions of similar
properties, which have been adjusted for the specific characteristics of the property held by the Group The valuation technique
includes inputs for the investment properties that are unobservable

In 2017 WPA Investrents Limited purchased a property, located in Taunton  The property 15 being refurbished, with significant
capital expenditure expected 1n 2019, before being leased and, as such, 15 held as an investment property The fair value of the
property Is deemed to be cast as it cannot be reliably determined due 1o being under construction

It1s intended that investment property will be valued annually by the Directors or by independent valuation specialists Investment
property is categonsed as level three within the fair value hierarchy

2018 2017
Group £'000 £'000
At January 2,438 -
Additions through acquisition - 2,438
Addwions through expenditure 274 -
Disposals - -
Moverment in fair value - -
At 31 December 2,712 2,438
12) Financial assets Carrying value

2018 2017
Group and Company £'000 £°000
Fair value through profit and loss
Equity 10,000 5.000
Collecuve investrent funds 16,731 30,661
Forward currency contract 0 -
Deposits with credit institutions at floating rates 36,439 46,268
Held to maturity
Government 1ssued secunties 107,916 77,836
Debt and other fixed income securities 19,424 20,380

190,510 180.145

A forward currency contract was taken out dunng the year to hedge against part of the expaosure to US Dollars in the investment
portfolic The forward contract had nil value as at 31 December 2018
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13) Debtors arising from direct insurance operations

As at 31 December 2018 premium due but not receved amounted to £889,000 - - A provision for impairment of
£47,000 was made as at 31 December 2018+ + '+ The premium not yet due relates to policies that are paid by instalments
where the relevant due dates are in the future, A provision for lapses of £106,000 ¢+ s maintained to recognise that

some contracts are cancelled after renewal documentation has been ssued All debtors are due within twelve months, A number
of policies are sold via intermedianes but al! premiums are payable directly to the Company

2018 2017
Group and Company £'000 £000
Premium duye 889 1,052
Premimum not yet due 38,518 36,787
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (153) 131}

39,254 37,708

Mavement in provision for impairment and lapses in the above recevables:

2018 2017
Group and Company £000 £000
At January 131 407
- Amounts charged/(credited) to Income Statement 128 1234}
- Amounts written off {106) (42
At 31 December B 153 3

All provisions relate to the current year Provisions for bad and doubtful debts are recognised on an incurred loss basis Specific
provision s made for known delingquencies A collective provision is made for inherent defaults incurred, but not observed, at the
balance sheet date on the basis of past experience
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14) Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows 2018 2017
Group £'000 £'000
Profit before tax 9,375 2013
Adjustments for
— Amaortisation 867 562
- Depreciation 372 419
- Prefit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 9 -
- Pension scheme exceptional items 652 1,152
- Net interest on pension scheme (287) 300
- Increase on revaluation of property, plant and equipment {98) 981
- Decrease/(Increase) in deferred acquisition costs 422 t113)
- Unrealised mvestment gains (3,642) 11,936
Operational cash flows before movements In \;‘\.'C;klﬁg capnal o 7,652 1,620
increase in debtors ansing out of direct insurance operations (1,546} {2,457}
Decrease/(increase) in other debtors 131 14 34}
Increase in prepayments and accrued income (202) {85}
Increase ininsurance habilities 453 180
Increase/(decrease) in payables ansing out of direct insurance operations 428 1659,
Increase/{decrease) in other creditors 175 1213
Cash generated from/(used by} operations 7,091 12,048,
2018 2017
Company £'000 £'000
Profit before tax 8,170 1,661
Adjustments for
- Amortisation 867 562
- Depreciation 355 417
— Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (8) -
- Pension scheme excepticnal items 652 1,162
— Net interest on pension scheme (287) (391
- Increase on revaluation of property, plant and equipment {98) {98}
- Decrease/(increase) in deferred acquisition costs 422 113}
- Unrealised investment gains {3,642) {1,936)
Operational cash flows before movements In working capital 6,431 1.264
Increase in debtors arsing out of direct Insurance operations {1,546) {2,457}
Increase in amounts awed by Group undertakings (450) 12,515}
Increase In prepayments and accrued income (174) {954
Increase in insurance habilities 453 180
Increase/(decrease) in payables ansing out of direct insurance operations 428 1659
Decrease 1n other creditors (186} (561)

Cash generate_& froml(us_e_;:l-by) operatit;n:; ) 4,956 1.816)
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15) Employee information Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
Monthly average number of persons (including Executive Directors) 292 301 248 259
employed on permanent contracts
Monthly average FTE (including Executive Directors) employed on 269 2a 296 240
permanent contracts
£'000 £000 £'000 £°000
Staff costs Wages and salaries 11,184 L 10,733
Social securty costs 1,124 e 1,118
Other pension costs 810 S 790
13,118 13,490 12,641 13,045
16} Directors’ emoluments 2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Salary 1,740 2,087
Pension related benefits 265 292
Benefits-in-kind 56 49
Amounts payable under short-term incentive plans 303 348
Amounts payable under leng-term incentive plans 174 148
Aggregate emoluments 2,538 2,904
Highest paid Director
Salary 483 471
Pension related benefits 97 94
Benefts-in-kind 14 10
Amounts payable under short-term incentive plans 95 35
Amounts payable under leng-term incentive plans 65 64
Aggregate emoluments for highest paid Directer 754 724

There were 11 Oirectors in 2018+ 1]

17) Post employment benefits

The Company has a defined benefit scheme (the ‘Scheme’} in the UK which 1s funded and the assets of which are held in
separate trustee administered funds The Scheme was closed to new entrants on 1 Apnl 2004 and closed to future accrual on
31 December 2015 The pension trustee 1s responsible for the governance of the Scheme In accordance with UK Government
legislation

These accounts comply with the accounting standard 1AS 19R (Employee Benefits)

The asset recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position in respect of the Scheme 1s the fair value of Scheme
assets less the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the financial reporting penod The defined benefit
obligation 15 calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected umit credit method The present value of the
defined benefit obhigation 1s determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to matunty that
approximate to the terms of the related pension lability

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption, the Company considers the current tevel of expected
return on risk-free investments (primarily government bonds), the historical level of risk premium associated with the other asset
classes inwhich the portfolio s invested and the expectations for future returns of each asset class The expected return on asset
for each asset class 15 then weighted by the actua! asset allocation to develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets

assumptron for the porifalio
P Note 17 continues overledf ..
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tn October 2018, the UK High Court ruled that defined benefits schemes should equalise pension benefits for men and women
in relation to Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMPs)  This is relevant to all UK defined benefit schemes with benefits earned
between May 1990 and Apnl 1997, including the Company Scheme The Scheme Actuary has estimated the impact of equalising
GMPs for the Scheme to be an increase of 1% of the Scheme hiabilities, this increase is reflected In the numbers below as a past
service cost The cost has been charged to the [ncome Statement as an excepticnal item in relation tc the Scheme

The major assumptions used by the actuary were: 2018 2017
Rate of Increase of pensions in payment 3.24% 320
Discount rate 2.80% 249-
Inflation assumption — RPI 3.35% 30
- (Pl 2.85% 280
Members taking maximum lump sum 75% 7570
Proportions marmed 85% 857
Expected return on Scheme assets 2.8% 2 4w,

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligations 1s 21 years .~ '+«

A Q 25% increase in the assumption made for discount rate would, in 1solation, have decreased the valuation of Scheme liabilities
by £2,092,000, a 0 25% reduction would have increased Scheme habilities by a ke amount The assumptions for salary and pension
increases are directly linked to inflation A G 25% increase in the inflation assumption would, in 1solation, have increased Scheme
lhabihities by £1,184,000, a 0 25% decrease would have decreased the valuation of Scheme liabilities by a hke amount If mortality
assumptions were to ncrease by one year this would increase the Scherne habilities by £1,344,000, a one year decrease would
decrease the Scheme habilities by a like amount If the proportions married were to increase by 10% this would increase the
Scheme liabtlities by £442,000, a 10% decrease would decrease the Scheme liabiiities by a like amount

Weighted average life expectancy for mortality tables used to 2018 2017
determine benefit obligations at: Male Female Male Female
Member age 60 (current life expectancy) 29.8 313 297 311
Member age 45 (Iife expectancy at age 60) 315 331 314 329
Scheme assets: £'000 £°000
Gilts 52,463 57,058
Annuity policies 122 146
Cther (52) (448,
Total market value of assets o - N T 52,533 56,756
Actuanal value of liabilives (39,226) 144,467,
Scheme asset 13,307 12,289
Related deferred tax asset (235) 345
Net Scheme asset 13,072 12,634

The Gilts are considered to be fair value level 1

2018 2017
Analysis of Scheme costs included within net operating expenses (note 4) £'000 £000
Past service cost {equalising GMPs) 388 -
L.0ss on transfers out 264 1,162
Exceptional tems in relation to the Bgm‘moﬁzcheme - 652 L162

Note 17 continues on opposite page. ..



2018 2017
Analysis of net interest cost on the Scheme included within investment return (note 3} £'000 £'000
Expected return on Scheme assets 1,316 1675
Interest on Scheme liabilities (1,029} 11,284
Net interest on the Scheme 287 391
2018 2047
Statement of Changes in Equity £000 £'000
Return on plan assels excluding interest mcome (1662) REED
Changes in assLmptions 3,048 11,919
Actuanat gain/{loss) recogrised o 1,386 {2,032
Related deferred tax (charge}/credit _ i _ __(235) 345
Changes in equity 1,151 (1.687)
Movement in value of the Scheme during the year 2018 2017
Change in benefit obligation £'000 £'000
Present value of benefit obligation at beginning of year 44,467 53.731
Past service cost (equalising GMPs) 388 -
Loss on transfers out 264 1,162
Interest cost 1,029 1.284
Actuanal changes - Effect of changes in inancial assumptions (3,160} 2,022
- Effect of expenence adjustments 115 103
Benefits paid (3,877) (13,629)
Present value of benefit obligations at end of year 39,226 43,467
2018 2017
Change in Scheme assets £'000 £'000
Fair value of Scheme assets at beginning of year 56,756 08,823
Interest InCome 1,316 1,675
Return on Scheme assets (excluding interest income) (1,662) 1113}
Benefits paid and transfers out (3,877) {13.629
Fair value of Scheme assets at end of year 52,533 56,756
2018 2017
History of assets and labilities £'000 £000
Total market value of assets 52,533 56,756
Present value of Scheme labilities (39,226} (44,467
Scheme surpius 13,307 12,289

Note 17 continues overleaf .
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2018 2017
History of experience gains and losses
Return on Scheme assers (3.2%) aE
Experience gains/(losses) on Scheme liabilities 0.0% 507

As the Schame closed to future accrual on 31 December 2015, the Company made no normal contributions during the year
: ‘ P During the year the Company made no special contnbutions to the Scheme
o N Given the Scheme surplus no normal or special contributions are anticipated for 2019

Since the transiion date the cumulative gain recognised through the Statement of Comprehensive Income is £9,000,000

Troa by [RELEE L PR

For employees meeting the eligibility conditions, the Company cperates a Group Personal Pension (GPP} The GPP provides the
auto-enrolment solution for the Company and provides improved levels of contnibution above the auto-enrciment requirements
for staff with greater than five years of service Duning the year contributions of £1,179000 . 1 -+ 1+ were made to defined
contnibution schemes

Pension Scheme Post employment medical
surplus provision
Group and Company £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2017 15.092 1550;
Movement in the year 12,803 1871
At 31 December 2017 12,289 5373
Movement in the year 1,018 3
At 31 December 2018 13,307 {634)

Free or discounted medical insurance cover has been provided for retired employees The provision 1s the estimated future cost
of claims in excess of antucipated premiums The costs of the cover are 1aken directly to the income Statement and the provision
required 1s updated annually Given the inherent uncertainty n establishing the provision for claims, it 1s hkely that the final
outcome will prove to be different to the onginal hatility established The key assumptions underpinning the post employment
medchical benefit provision are the net increase of future claims in excess of premiumsof 16% 1 1 +and the discount rate of
28% © - Mortality assumptions are taken from the $1 Light table with CMI 2012 projections and 1 5% pa long term rate
of improvernent: 1 1~ ¢ b gt

18) Commitments and contingent liabilities
2018 2017
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases are as follows

Whthin one year 127 52 128 54
Between one and five years 364 180 197 180
After five years 268 296 312 340
- - 759 528 637 Cs7a

The Group has leased a building to provide business continuity capabilities Lease payments are on a fixed payment basis and no
arrangements have been entered into for contingent payments The remaming lease term runs until December 2029

The Parent Company has guaranteed the habiives of 1ts dormant subsidianes (including trustee companies) listed in Note 8,
permitting them to be exempt from prepaning and filing their accounts at Companies House
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19) Related party disclosures

a} Transactions with subsidiaries

The transactions between the Company and its subsidianes are presented below All transactions and balances with Group entities
are ehminated on consalidation Al balances with trading subsidianies are unsecured and there are no terms and conditions
relating to them Debts of dormant subsidiaries are guaranteed by the Parent Company

2018 2017
Transactionsin the year: £'000 £°000
Admimistration charge by WPA Limited (9,385) 16631
Administration charge to WPA Lirnited 9,545 1033
N h 160 (630;
Balances cutstanding:
Gross recevable by WPA Limited 3116 2,924
Gross payabie by WpPA Limited (150) 1310}
o o ’ 2,966 2,514
b) Key management compensation
Key management personnel nclude all Parent Company Executive and Non-Executive Directors
- 2018 2017
£°000 £°000
Salary 1,740 2.067
Pension related benefits 265 292
Benefits-in-kind 56 49
Amounts payable under short-term incentive plans 303 318
Amounts payable under fong-term incentive plans 174 148
Aggregate emcluments 2,538 2,904

Key management personnel purchased insurance pehicies on an arm's length basts with premium payments of £694 1 the year

¢} Other related parties
During the year the Company made donations to the WPA Benevolent Foundation Limrted {the Foundation), a company limited by
guarantee and affillated to the Group, totaling £250,000. i 4 a0 The objective of the Foundation is the promotion
of good health In young people through supporting projects and working with communities and special-interest groups In the
South West. The Company leases, on an arm’s length basis, a property owned by the Foundatien and paid lease costs in the year
of £45,000 URENTY

The Company halds investments with a value of £9,354,000 1! : .0 the Pedder Street Asia Absoiute Return Fund, a
Hong Kong based Fund of which Lerd Cromer is the charman of the board of directors, the Company holds 10% - 1+ of
the fund

As a consequence of WPA's Investment, Mr Inwin was a non-executive director as the Company's representative on Proton Partners
tnternational Limited’s board throughout 2018 and resigned on 13 February 2019
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20) Risk management

20.1 Financial risk management

The activities of the Group expose It to a variety of financial risks - market nsk (iIncluding exchange rate, Interest rate and price risks),
credit nsk and iquidity risk The overall nsk management programme of the Group focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise the potennai adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group

The Board has a farmally approved Risk Appetite Statement The Investment Committee monitors the management of investment
assets to ensure that they meet the aims and objectives set out in the Risk Appetite Statement, the investment managers report
regularly to the Investment Committee to enable it to fulfil this role.

a} Market risk

The Group's pnimary market nsk exposure 1s through the portfolio of collective investment funds From a solvency perspective the
impact of market nsk 15 eliminated through holding low nsk investments, typically UK Government stocks and Treasury Bills, which
meet solvency and current habilities requirements  Equity nsk 1s managed through the Investment Committee’s careful selection
of investment managers who have a sound track record and expertise 1n their chosen sector or geography The poertfolio 1s well
dwersified to protect against adverse market mevements in any cne segment

The geograghical equity exposure of the portfolio in collective investment funds at 31 December 2018 and 2017 were

. . Number of 2018 Number of 2017
Geographical equity exposure

funds £°000 funds £000

UK 2 3,573 3 8.764
Asta 2 11,597 3 13,212
Global 1 1,561 2 8,685
5 16731 8 30,661

The principal financial assets held at 31 December 2018 and 2617, analysed by therr fair value hierarchy levels were

2018 2017
SRR £000 £000
Level 1 Forward currency contracts 0
Deposits with credit institutions at floating rates 36,439 15,268
Level 2 Collective investment funds 13,158 27,051
Level 3 Callective investment funds 3,573 3,610
Equity 10,000 5.000
At amortised cost
Government 1ssued securities 107,916 77,838
Debt and cther fixed income secunties 19,424 20,380
190,510 130,145

Government 1ssued secunties, debt and other fixed income secunities, loans and recevables and trade debtors are recognised
in the Statement of Financial Positon at amortised cost The far value of trade debtors are considered to be equivalent to the
amarnsed cost Whalst all the investments In the portfolic are susceptible to movements in interest rates, to a greater or lesser
extent, the most directly affected are the fixed income and Government issued securnities The Group has 20+ - direct
corporate bond holdings and holdings in UK Government stocks and UK and US Treasury These instruments are intended to be
held to matunity and thus these are held at amortised cost totalling £127 3m wathin these financial statements The estimated fair
value of these instruments 1s £126 9m

Any percentage gain or loss on these assets would be directly proportional to their value therefore no further sensitivity analysis
has been performed

Note 20 continues on opposite page...
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Unquoted equities

2018 2017
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial assets: £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 January 8,610 2,083
Total gains recognised 5,068 551
Purchases - 150
Sales (105) {1,180
Balance at 31 December 13,573 3610

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Valued using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments  This category includes actively
traded listed equity shares, exchange-traded dervatives and UK Government stocks

Level 2 Values are provided by the investment manager using techniques based sigrificantly on observed market data, including
net asset values

Level 3 Valued using techniques incorporating formation other than observable market data

The level 3 collective investment funds comprises of holdings within two collective investment schemes, the underlying
investments of which contain some unlisted equities and equities listed on secondary markets The valuation within these financial
statements 15 provided by the Fund Managers The Fund Managers' practice 1s ta use the cost level for all fnanaial instruments
which are not publicly traded and takes account of other relevant Information such as refinancing, current financial performance of
the instrument’s issuer, general market trend of the issuer's industry and other econonnc information that & seller of an instrument
would generally consider in setting the price at which 1o sell the instrument The level 3 equity represents a directly held unlisted
equity, which 15 held at fair value using observable equity transactions, external market trends of the issuer's industey and other
economic information

The underlymg investments in eguities, the majonty of which are listed on recognised exchanges, are directly exposed to price nsk,
although this risk 1s mitigated to same extent by holding a diversified portfolio of funds

The Group holds small current account bank balances in Indian Rupees, which are primarily held for working capital purposes
The Group has a regular need 1o purchase Rupees to meet the operating expenses of WPA World Class Service Lirmited

The largest single market to which the Company has exposure 1s the UK eguity market Using the FTSE 100 as a proxy for the
UK equity portfolio, if this index were to fall by 200 points, the impact on asset values would be a reductlon of £400000 -
. Ifallequity values were to fall by 5% this would reduce asset values by £1,340,000 17 -1

b) Credit risk

Credit nsk 1s defined 1o be the potential for loss that can occur as a result of impairment in the creditworthiness of an issuer or
counterparty or a default by an issuer or counterparty on its contractual obhgations Credit nisk also extends o encompass the
exposure that the Group has to third parties, in particular to custemers and to providers of reinsurance in the event that they are
unable to meet their obligations All debts due to the Group are reviewed each month and full provision 1s made for those debts
which are considered to be bad and partial provision for those considered to be doubtful, n accordance with 1AS 39

Credit nsk hmits are intended te constramn the exposure 1o Indwvidual counterparties and issuers, types of counterparties and issuers,
countries and types of financing collateral

The Group assesses the creditworthiness of existing and potential customers, and institutional counterparties and determines
Group-wide credit risk hrmits within an agreed risk framework. In addition, the Group reviews and monitors portfolio and other
credit nsk concentrations Through the investment managers, the Group also performs ongormng monitonng of credit quality and
investment-hmit compliance to manage and mitigate credit risk The Investment Committee sets imits on the exposure to an
individual couniterparty orissuer taking due account of the probability of it failing to fuifil its contractual obhgations

The Group manages Its exposure to pohicyholder debtors through regular credit control procedures coupled with a stringent policy
of holding claims payments untit any overdue amounts are recetved from pohicyholders

The largest single counterparty exposure Is the UK Government stock of £107 9 The maximurm duration of UK Government stock

held at amortised cost 1s three years
Note 20 continues averleaf. ..
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¢} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the managemeant of the cash flow of the Group Since the Group has no ability to raise equity funding
externally, on account of its legal structure, hguidity nsks relate principally to the Group bemng unable to liquidate an asset In a
timely manner at a reasonable price Such risks are therefore primarily concerned with the construction of the investment portfolic
The Group has no plans to raise capital through the 1ssuance of loan notes nor does 1t rely on premium (ncome to meet the current
outgoings of the business, including claims

Due 1o the construction of the mvestment portfolic and its highly bguid nature, liquidity nsk s not regarded as a sigruficant 1ssue
Controls are In place to ensure that the situation does not detenorate to a position where it could become such As at the year-end
the Group held sufficient iquid assets to cover current habilities

The following table analyses the financial labilities of the Group, the majonty of which will be settled within twelve months,
with £1,319,000 of other creditors settled later than twelve months =~ - + . The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, with estimates for goods and services receved at the balance sheet date but not inveiced

2018 2017

£'000 £'000

Creditors anising from direct insurance operations 5,447 5,019
Provision for outstanding claims 9,542 9,355
Corporation tax 836 -
Other creditors 7,014 6,736
22,839 21,111

20.2 Insurance risk management

The principal insurance risks all relate to the ability to generate underwriting returns over the course of the insurance cycle Some
are within the control of management - maintaining an appropriate pricing structure, applying appropnate underwriting controls,
collecting premiums due in a timely fashion; others are outside such control - changes in Government policy, the effectiveness of
the NHS The WPA risk register catalogues these nisks and the acuon taken to control or mitigate them Private medical insurance
does not generally cover primary care and 15 directed towards elective procedures administered with curative intent, large scale
disasters, including pandemics, would not normally give nse to treatment under this defintion In addition, the scate of the disaster
might preclude the involvement of the private sector in any case Risk 15 managed within the core underwriting business by the
achieverment of planned underwntng ratios and monitored through menthly management reports The primary risk vanable
within the financial statements in relation to insurance risk is the provision for claims outstanding A 5% increase in the provision
would iImpact reserves by £394000 -, e

20.3 Capital risk management
The Company Is a not-for-profit organisation, which dees not have to satisfy the appetite of shareholders for ever increasing returns
The capital of the business comprises its entire accumulated reserves, as disclosed on the face of the Statement of Financial Position

As a consequence of its legal structure, the Group has no recourse to external capnal and therefore internally generated capital 1s
of paramount importance There is no significant dissipation of capital through major infrastructure projects the Group owns the
freehold toits office buillding and expenditure on capital projects 1s closely controlled There are ongoing requirements to replace
and upgrade {T equipment and other assets, but the costs of these additions are met cut of regular cash flow The Group has plans
for matenal capral expenditure in relation to the investment property

Durning the year the Company continued to report under the Solvency It environment  The Board receive regular management
information updates on the capital position when measured against the Standarg Formula and have approved the holistic risk
management approach as captured in the ORSA  As at 31 December 2018 the Group's solvency coverage against the standard
formula assessment was 620% (unaudited) 1 * ' -~ . Further information can be found in the Solvency & Financial Condition
Report on the website - wpa org uk
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21} Future accounting disclosures
At the date of authonisation of these financial statements, the Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have
been 1ssued but are not yet effective and (in some cases) had not yet been adopted by the EU

IFRS 17 Insurance contracts
IFRS 16 Leases

The Group 15 currently assessing the impact of IFRS 17

For IFRS 16 we anticipate that we will need to recognise the business continuity site, which the Company leases. as an asset, with
the correspanding future lease payments as a hability The impact has been assessed and will not be matenal

The other standards n 1ssue but not yet effective are not expected te significantly impact the Group

22) IFRS 9 deferral

The Group apples the temporary exemption from IFRS § Financial instruments, as defined in the amendment ‘Applying IFRS
9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts — IFRS 4 amendments’ 1ssued by the |ASB in September 2016 This
amendment allows an entity to defer the implementation of IFRS G if its activities are predominantly connected with insurance As
a result, the Group will continue to apply 1AS 39, Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurermnent in (ts financial statements
until the reporting period beginning on 1 January 2022

The Group performed an assessment of the amendments and reached the conclusion that its activities are predominantty
connected with insurance as at 31 December 2015 The Group's percentage of its gross habiliies connected with insurance relative
to Its total labihties at 31 December 2015 was 99% which 1s In excess of the 90% threshold required by IFRS 4. Liabilities connected
with Insurance compnsed the habilities ansing from contracts within the scope of IFRS 4 for a 1otal amount of £55 3m, liabibties
from non-dervative investment contracts measured as FVTPL for a total amount of £03m and habilities that arose as the insurer
fuifils obligations ansing from contracts within the scope of IFRS 4 and non-dervative investment contract habilites measured as
FVTPL (for example, habilites for other payables directly associated with those obligations) for a total amount of 4 2m

During 2018 and 2017, there has been no significant change in activities of the Company that requires reassessment of the use of
the temporary exemption fram IFRS 9

The table below presents an analysis of the fair value of the classes of financial assets as at the end of the reporting pencd The
financial asset classes are divided into three categones

(  SPP! assets of which cash flows represent Solely Payments of Principal and Interest on an outstanding principal amount, but
are not meeting the definiton of held for trading 1n IFRS G, or are not managed on a fair value basis, and,

(0 FarValue Option assets that follow the fair value option at initial recegniuon and carried at FVTPL, and,

() Other (at FVTPL) all financial assets other than those specfied In SPPland Fair Value Qption
- with contractual terms that do not give nse on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the principal amount
outstanding,
- that meet the definttion of held for trading In IFRS 9, or,
~ that are managed and whose performance are evaluated on a farr value basis

Based on the assessment carmed out, no provision has been made for expected credit losses

Note 22 continues overleaf
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Solely
Payments of
Principal and Fair Value Other

Interest Option (at FVTPL) Total
Fair values as at 31 December 2017 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Debt securities YR 215 - G9R.217
Equity securities 5000 5,000
Loans and recewvables 32,9302 38,502
Collective investment schemes 30461 30,6581
Dervatives -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 53,299 53,298
Total inancial assets 98,216 - 128.861 227,077
Fair values as at 31 December 2018
Debt secunities 127,340 - - 127,340
Equity securities - - 10,000 10,000
Loans and recevables - - 39,646 39,646
Collective investment schemes - - 16,731 16,731
Dervatives - - 0 0
Cash and cash equivalents - - 43,625 43,625
Total inancial assets 127,340 - 110,002 237,342
Change in fair value
Debt secunties 29,124 - - 29,124
Equity securities - - 5,000 5,000
Loans and recevables - - (256) (256)
Collective imvestment schemes - - {13,930} (13,930)
Cerivatives - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - (9,673) {9.673)
Total financial assets 20,124 - (18,859} 10,265

Note 22 continues on opposite page. ..
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For financial assets whose cash flows represent SPPI, excluding any financial assets that meet the definition of held for trading
in IFRS 9, or that are managed and whose performance s evaluated on a fair value basis, the table below provides information
on credit nsk exposure (rated by Standard & Poors)  The financial assets are categonsed by asset class wath a carrying amount
measured in accordance with 1AS 39 measurement requirements (in the case of financial assets — measured at amartised cost,
before adjusting for any iImpairment allowances)

Debt Equity Loans and Collective Cash and short-
securities securities receivables investmentschemes term deposits Total
as at 31 December 2017 £000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
AAA 710 - - - 740
AA 77,096 - - - 3,194 26,290
A 1,839 - - - 25,564 27403
BRB 13,519 - - - 18,130 31,655
Without external rating 5,022 5,000 39902 30,661 404 80,989
98,216 5,000 39,902 30,661 53,298 227,077

as at 31 December 2018

AA 107,916 - - - 1,004 108,920
A 4,209 - - - 29,335 33,544
BBB 10,193 - - - 12,729 22,922
Without external rating 5,022 10,000 39,646 16,731 557 71,956
127,340 10,000 39,646 16,731 43,625 237,342

For assets that do not have low credit risk as determined by the Group and of which cash flows represent SPPI, excluding any
financial assets that meet the definition of held for trading 1n IFRS 9, or that are managed and whese performance 15 evaluated on a
fair value basis, the table below provides the credit nisk exposure from the financial assets held by the Group The financial assets are
categonsed by asset class with a carrying amount and fair value measured in accordance with IAS 39 measurement requirements

Carrying Fair

amount Value
as at 31 December 2018 £'000 £000
Debt secunties 127,340 126,874

127,340 126,874
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